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Directors’ report

The directors present their report together wich the audited financial statements of Busy Bee Finance PLC
(t|1|: cum[.mn],'} and the consolidated Anandial statements of the group of which it is the patcne, for the vear
ended 30 November 2023,

Principal activities

The company was incorporated on 31 July 2018, The company was formed principally to act as a finance and
investment company, in patticular, o finance or re-finance the funding requirements of related companics
within the Busy Bee Group.

Performance review

During the vear under review, the group registered a profit before axation of € 610k, 35% higher than the
profic of € 453k registered in the previous financial year.

During 2 year of cononued inflationary pressures mainly driven by the Russia — Ukmine conflict, focus to
improve efficiencies throughout the operations was paramount, Furthermore, the Group has undergone an
intetnal recrganisation to ensure resources are cffectively allocated. This focus led to a 10% improvement in
the Gross Profic Margin, reaching 38%4.

The Group registered a 7% increase in revenue, reaching € 6.76million. The group’s revenue largely
originutes thrungh companics fom‘uing part of the Bus.:.' Bee Limired group, which act as retall outlets for the
products produced by the manufacturing subsidiary of the Group. The revenue growth is atrribumble to the
firse full year of operations of 2 new outler in Sliema operated by one of the related companies and
substantial increase in outside catering events, surpassing pre covid levels,

The group pencrated an operating profit of € 905k (2022: € 87k), originating mainly from the food
manufactuting activity as well as reneal income and rovalyy fees charged to other related parties.

Earnings per share is recorded ac € 9.02 (2022: € 8.95),

At 30 November 2023, total assets amounted to € 17.9million (2022: € 17 2million) and equity of the group
amounted to €9, 7million {2022: € 7.9million),

The direcrors consider the company and the group to be a gping concern.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The company 1s exposed w nsks inherent to its operanon and can be summarised as follows:

Strategy risk

Risk management falls under the responsibiliny of the board of directors. The board is continuously analysing
its risk management straregy to ensure that risk is adequately identified and managed. The audit commictee
regularly reviews the risk profile adopted by the beard of dirccrors.

Operational risks

The company's revenue is mainly derived from interest charges and service fees charged to related parties and
hence the company is heavily dependent on the performance of the Busy Bee Group. The management
regularly reviews the financial performance of the Busy Bee Group of Companies to ensure that there is
sufficient liquidity to sustain its operations.

Legislative risks

The company is governed by a number of laws and regulations. Failure to comply could have financial and
reputational implications and could materially affecr the company’s ability to operare. The company has
embedded operating policies and procedures ro ensure compliance with existing legisladon.

Financial risk management and exposures

MNote 2B to the financial statements Pl‘nvid::‘i a detniled analysis of the fAnancial sk o which the group and
Cl]n][:lﬂ[‘:.' Aarc EKPTJSL"LI.

Diversity and inclusion

We aim ro promote and embed diversity and inclusion into our culture, values and everyching we do both
within Busy Bee as well as in the environment in which we operate.

Health and safety

The maintenance of a safe place of work and business for our emplayees, customers and visitors is a key
responsibility for all managers and members of staff. Busy Bee is commitred o proactively manage health and
safery risk through the identitication, assessment and mitigaton of hazards that may etherwise result in injury,
fire events and operational failure.

The directors remain committed to maintaining the group’s preparedness for emerging and foreseeable risks
in ensuring health and safery compliance.

Employees

We are committed to an inclusive culture where our peaple can be confident thar their views matter, their
workplace i1s an environment free from bias, discriminanon and harassment, and where they can sec that
advancement 15 based on ment,

People arc at the core of our business. The focus of our people plan is to ensure we have a workforce
thar is highly skilled in ensuring thar the quality thar Busy Bee is renowned for always remains at its highest
levels and that it translates into successful outcomes for our customers and our business, Our aim is to
build a strong employee value propositon that attracts the best talent with a diverse background which
in turn enriches our business culture,
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Dividends and reserves

The direcrors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and propose w mansfor the profic for the vear
teserves,

Directors

The dirccrors of the company durng the year were:

Brian Friggier
Geoffrey Friggieri
Reberr Ancilleri
Charles Scerti

In accordance with the company’s Articles of Associaton, the present divectars remain in office,

Disclosure of information to the auditor

At the date of making this report the directars confirm the following:

= As far as cach direcror is aware, there 15 no relevant informanon needed by the independent auditor in
connecton with preparing the audit report of which the independent auditor is unaware, and

= Each director has taken all steps that they oughr to have taken as a director in arder to make themselves
aware of any televant information needed by the independent auditor in connectdon with preparing the
report and to establish thar the independent auditor is aware of that information.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The Ctjmrmnir:; Act, C:lp 386 ruquit-;s. the direcrors ta prepare financial starements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the smte of affairs of the group and the company as ar the end of the
reporting period and of the profit or loss of their operations for that period. In preparing those financial
starements, the direcrors are required to:

- adopr the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate o presume that the group and the company will
continue in business;

- selecr suirable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates thar are reasonable and prudent;

- account for income and charges relating to the accounting period on the aceruals basis; and

- wvalue separately the components of asser and liability irems.

The direcrors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuraey
at any fme the financial posidon of the group and the company, and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, Cap 386, This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and Fair
ptesentation of financial statements thar ate free from material misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error.
They are also responsible for safepuarding the assets of the group and the company, and tor taking reasenable
steps for the prevenoon and detecnion of fraud and other irregulanoes,
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Auditor

The auditor Grant Thornron has intmated its willingness o continue in office and a resoluton proposing its
reappointment will be put to the Annual General Mecting,

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

o pinf

Charles Scerei ~ Brian Friwgieri
Chaitman Director
Registered address:

Busy Bee Group
Zone 4, Mdina Road
Mrichel

Birkirkara CB1Y 4010
Malta

28 March 2024



Busy Bee Finance PLC 7
Report and consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 November 2023

Corporate governance - statement of compliance

Introduction

The Prospects MTF Rules issued by the Malta Stock Exchange require qualifying companies admitted to
Prospeces MTF ro observe relevant corporate governance smandards, in this case the Code of Prnciples of
Good Corporare Governance (the eode).

The board of directors {the board or the direcrors) of Busy Bee Finance PLC (the company) acknowledges
thar although the code does ner dictate or prescribe mandarory rules, compliance with the principles of good
corporate governance recommended in the code is in the best interests of the compiny, its shareholders and
other stakeholders.

The company’s decision-making structure is designed ro meet the company requirements and 1o ascertain that
decision making is subject to the checks and balances where this is appropriate.

General

Good corporate governance is the responsibility of the board as a whole, and has been, and remains a priority
for the company. [n deciding an the most appropriate manner in which to implement the code, the board took
cognisance of the company’s size, narure and operanans, and is of the opinion thar the adoption of certain
mechanisms and structures which may be suitable for companies with extensive operations may nor be
appropriate for the company. The limitations of size and scope of operations inevitably impact on the
structures required to implement the code, withour however diluting the effectiveness thercof.

The board considers that, to the extent otherwise disclosed herein, the company has generally been in
compliance with the code throughout the period under review.

This starement shall now set our the structures and processes in place within the company and how these
cffectively achicve the poals ser out in the code for the period under review. For this purpose, this statement
will make reference o the pertinent prineiples of the code and then ser out the manner in which the board
considers that these have been adhered o, and where it has not,

For the avoidance of doubt, reference in this statement to compliance with the principles of the code means
compliance with the code’s main principles.

The directors believe that for the financial vear under review the company has generally complied with the
requirements for cach of the code’s main principles. Further information in this respeetis provided hereunder.

Principle one: the company’s board of directors

The direceors report that for the financial vear under review, they have provided the necessary leadership in
the overall diveetion of the company and have performed thelr responsibilities for the efficient and smooth
running of the company with honesty, competence and integrity. The board is composed of members who are
fit and proper to direct the business of the company with honesty, competence and integrity, All the members
of the board ave fully aware of, and conversane with, the stutory and regulatory requirements connected to
the business of the eompany. The board is accountable for irs performance and thar of its delegates to
sharehalders and other relevant stakeholders.

The board has throughout the petiod under review adopted prudent and effective systems which ensure an
open dialogue berween the board and senior management.

The company has a structure that ensures a mix of executive and non-executive directors and thar enables the
board to have direct information about the company’s performance and business activities.
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Principle two: the company’s chairman and chief executive officer

The chairman whe aces as an independent non-exceutive direcror, excrcises independent judgement and is
responsible o lead the board and see its agenda, whilst also ensuring thar the direcrors receive precise, timely
and objective information so that they can tuke sound decisions and effectively monitor the performance of
the company. The chairman is also responsible for ensuring effective communication with shareholders and
ensuring active engagement by all members of the board for discussion of complex or contentious issues.

The tole of the chief executive officer (CEQ) is oecupled by an individual who is an executive membert of the
board of dirccrors,

The CEO is responsible to drive and deliver performance wichin strategic goals and business plans agreed by
the board. He actively leads senior management in the day-to-day running of the company and execurion of
the agreed steategy. He rakes decisions in all matters affecting rhe operations, performance, and scrategy of the
business, except for those matters reserved for the board or specifically delegated by the board o its
cOmmittecs,

The position of the Chairman and that of the CEO are occupied by different individuals. Their respective
positions have been defined with specific roles rendering these positions completely separate from one
anothet. This ensures a clear division of responsibilities between the running of the Board and the CEO
responsibilicy of management of the company’s performance. The separation of rales of the Chairman and the
CEO avoids congentration of authority and power in one individual.

Principle three: composition of the board

The board is composed of four members, with two executive and two non-exceutive directors, The non-
exceutive directors are independent from the company. It is responsible for the overall long-term strategy and
general policics of the company, of monitoring the company’s systems of control and financial reporting and
communicating effeetively with che marker as and when nccessary,

The board of directors consists of the following:

- Charles Scerr1 — Chairman/Non-executive director
- Robert Anciller — Non-executive Director

- Brian Priggicti — Dircecror
- Geoffrey Prigeicr — Dircetor

In accotdance with the provisions of the companmy’s Articles of Association, the appointment of dircctors to
the board is exclusively reserved o the company’s sharcholders, exeepr in so far as appointment is made by the
bowrd to Bl a casual vacancy, which appointment would be valid unal the conclusion of the nest Annual
General Meeting of the company following such an appointment. Mr Charles Scerti and Mr Robert Ancilleri
are considered by the boatd to be indepéndent non-executive members of the board.

None of the independent non-executive direcrors:

a) s ot has been emploved in any capacity with the company;

by hasor had a significant business reladonship with the company;

c) has received significant additional remuneration from the company;

d) has close family des with any of the company’s executive directors or senior employees;

¢) hasserved on the board for mare than twelve consecutive years; ar

f) is or has been within the last three vears an engagement partner or 2 member of the audit ream of the
present or former external auditor of the company.
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Each non-esccutive director has declared in writing to the board that he undermkes:
a) ro maintain in all citcumstances his independence of analysis, decision and action;

b) not to seck or accept any unreasonable advantages that could be considered as compromising his
independence; and

) rto clearly express his opposition in the evenr that he finds thar a decision of the board may harm the
company,

Principle four: the responsibilities of the board

The board acknowledges its statutory mandarte o conduct the administeaton and management of the company.
The board, in fulfilling this mandate and discharging its duty of stcewardship of the company, assumes
responsibility for the company's strategy and decisions with respect to the issue, servicing and redemprtion of
its bonds in issue, and for monitoring thar its operations are in conformity with its commitments towards
bondholders, shareholders, and all relevant laws and regulanons. The board is also responsible for ensuring
that the company establishes and operates effective intermal control and management informadon syscems and
that it communicares effectively with the marker.

Directors are entitled to seck independent professional advice at any time on any aspect of their duties and
responsibilitics, at the company’s expensc.

The Awdit Counicree

The Audit Committee's primary objective is to assist the board in fulfilling irs responsibilities: in dealing with
issuces of rsk, control and governance; and review rhe financial reporting processes, financial policics and
internal contral structure, During the financial vear under review, the Audit Commircee mer four times.

Although the Audit Commitree is ser up at the level of the company its main tasks arc also related o the
activities of the company.

The hoard has set formal terms of establishment and the werms of reference of the Audic Commictee that
establish its composition, role and function, the parameters of its remit as well as the basis for the processes
thar it is required o comply with, The Audic Commitree is 2 sub-committee of the board and is directly
responsible and accountable to the board.

Furthermore, the Audic Commirtee has the role and function of scrutinising and evaluatung any proposed
transacrion to be entered into by the company and a related party, to ensute that the execunon of any such
transaction is atarm's lengrh and on a commercial basis and uldmately in the best interests of the company.

As ar the date hereof, the Audir Commirtee is composed of 3 members:

- Robert Ancilleri — Chairman
- Geoffrey Friggieti — Member
- Charles Scerri — Member

Mr Robert Ancilleri and Mr Chacles Scerri ave non-excecutive directors and qualified accountants, who the
board considers as independent and competent in accounting,
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Litirnal conirol

The board is uldmarely cesponsible for the company's system of internal conwols and for reviewing is
effectiveness. The direcrors are aware chat internal conrrol systems are designed w manage, rather than
eliminate, the risk of failure ro achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, and not absolure,
assurance against normal business risks.

During the financial year under review the company operated a system of internal conerols which provided
reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operatons coveting all controls, Including financial and
operatonal controls and compliance with laws and regulatons, Processes are in place for identifving, evaluating
and managing the sipnificant risks facing the company.

Orther key features of the system of internal contrel adopted by the company in respect of its pwn internal
contral as well as the control of its subsidiaries and affiliates are as follows:

(2} Control environment

The company is committed o the highest standards of business conduct and secks o maintain these standards
across all of its operations. company policies and employee procedutes are in place for the reporting and
resolution of fraudulent actvitics. The company has an appropriatc organisational structure for planning,
exccuting, controlling and monitoring business operations in order to achicve company objectives.

() Risk identification

The board, with the assistance of the management team, is responsible for the identificarion and evaluation of
key risks applicable to the areas of business in which the company and its subsidiaries are involved. These risks
are assessed on a continual basis,

(c} Informarion and communicanon

Funetional, operational and financial reporting standards are applicable to all enddes of the company. These
ate supplemented by operating standards set by the board. Systems and procedures are in place to identify,
control and to repore on the major risks including credit risk, changes in the market prices of financial
instruments, liquidity, operatonal errocand fraud. The board receives periodic management information giving
comprechensive analysis of financial and business performance including variances against budgets.

Periodic strategic reviews which include consideration of long-rerm financial projecrions and the evaluarion of
business alternatives are regularly convened by the board. An annual budger 1s prepared and performance
against this plan is actvely monitored and reported to the board.

Coeureral moeeiings

The general meeting is the highest decision-making body. A general meeting is called by fourteen days' notice
and 1t is conducted in accordance with the Articles of Association,

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) deals with what is termed as "ordinary business", numely, the receiving
ot adoption of the annual financial statements, the declaration of a dividend, if any, the appointment of the
audirors, board authorisation to fix the auditors' emoluments and the election of divectors, Other business
which may be transacted at a general meeting (including at the AGM) will be dealr with as special business.

No business shall be transacted at a general meeting of the company unless a quorum of membeys is present
at the time the meeting proceecds to business. The quorum at any shareholder's meeting shall be any number of
members holding not less than seventy-five percent of the issued paid up shares conferring voting rights in the
company. Provided that if within half an hour from the time appﬂinhft’! for the m{‘ft'lngﬂ quorum is not present,
the meeting shall be adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time or place or to such other day
and such other time and place as all the directors may determine and if at the adjourned meeting a quorum is
not present as described above, the member/s present shall constiute a quorum providing they hold not less
than fifty percent of the 1ssued paid up shares conferring voung rights in the company. Each share shall enatle
the holder thereof to one vore:



Busy Bee Finance PLC 11
Report and consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 November 2023

A shareholder who cannor participate in the general meeting can appoint a proxy by written or electronic
norfication o the board.

Every sharcholder represented in person or by proxy is enritled to ask questions which are pertinent and related
to items on the agenda of the gencral meeting and to have such questions answered by the directors or by such
persons as the directors may delegare for that purpose,

Principle five: board meetings

The directors meet tegulatly to dispatch the business of the board. The directors are notified of forthcoming
meetings by the company secretary with the issue of an agenda and supporting board papers, which are
circulated in advance of the meeting. Minutes are prepared during board meetings recording faithfully
artenclance, and resoludons taken at the meetng, The chairman ensures that all relevant issues are on the
agenda supported by all available information, whilst encouraging the presentation of views pertinent to the
subject mateer and giving all directors every opportunity to contribute to relevant 1ssues on the agenda. The
agenda on the board seeks to achieve a balance between long-term strategic and short-term performance issues.

The board meets as often as frequently required in line with the nawre and demands of the business of the
company, Directors attend meetings on a frequent and regular basis and dedicate the necessary time and
attention to their duties as directors of the company. The following directors attended board meetings as
follows:

Name Designation Number of meetings
Charles Scerni Chairman,/Non-executive director 4oucof4
Robetrr Ancilleri Non-executive director 4 our of 4
Brian Fripgieri Executve direcror 4 our of 4
Geoffrey Friggien Executive director 4 out of 4

Principle six: information and professional development

As part of succession planning and employee retention, the Board and CEO ensure that the company
implements appropriate schemes to rectuit, retain and motivide employees and senior management and keep a
high morale amongst employvees.

Principle seven: evaluation of the board’s petformance

Under the present circumstances, the board does not consicler it necessary 1o appaint 4 committee to Carry out
a performance evaluarion ofits role, as the board's performance is always under the scrutiny of the shareholders
of the company.

Principle eight: remuneration and nomination committees

The board of directors considers that the size and operation of the issuer does not warrant the serting up of
nomination and remuncration committee. The issuer will not be incorporardng a nominaton comimiteee.

;“Lppnln:mcnta to the board of ditectors ave determined by the sharcholders of the issuer in accordance with
the company's Memorandum and Artcles of Associaton. The issuer considers that the members of the board
possess the level of skill, knowledge and expertience expected in terms of the code,

Principle nine and ten: relations with shareholders and with the market

Pursuant o the company's statutory ebligagons in terms of the Companies Acr (Cap. 386 of the Laws of
Malea), the Annual Report and Financial Statements, the election of directors and approval of directors’ fees,
the appointment of the auditors and the authorisation of the directors ro st the auditors' fees, and other special
business, are proposed and approved ar the company's Annual General Meering,

With tespect to the company's bondhelders and the macket in general, during che finaneial year under review,
there wis no need to issue any company announcements (o the market. Bondholders are kept updated through
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the publication of the annual report and financial statements and by publishing its results on a six-monthly
basis during the period, and through company announcements to the market in general.

Principle eleven: conflicts of interest

All of the directors of the company, except for Mr Charles Scerri and Mr Roberr Ancilleri, are executive officers
of the company, The executive directars, Mr Gcﬂfﬂ'l::.' Fﬁggi:[i and Mr Brian Frigg'icl'i, have a direct bencfcial
interest in the share ca[ﬁt;ﬂ af the company, and as such are Susct[:!tib]t: to conflicts arising between the
potentially diverging interests of the shareholders and the company. During the financial year under review,
no private interests or duties unrelated o the company were disclosed by the dirccrors which were or could
have likely placed any of them in conflict wath any interests in, or dunes towards the company.

The Audit Committee has the task o ensure char any potential conflicts of interest are resalved in rthe best
interests of the company. Furthermore, in accordance with the provisions of Article 145 of the Companies Act
(Cap. 386 of the Laws of :ﬂalm)_ CVELY diccctor wha is in any way, whether dirtcrl:.' or inﬂil‘tctl:.', interested in
a contract or proposed contract with the company is under the duty to fully declare his interest in the relevant
transaction to the board at the ficst possible opportunity, He will not be enttled to vote on macters relanng to
the proposed transaction and only parties who do not have any conflice in considering the marrer will
participate in the consideration of the proposed transaction (unless the board finds no objecton to the presence
of such director wich conflict of interest),

Principle twelve: corporate social responsibility

The company sceks to adhere to sound Principles of Corporate Social Responsibility in its management
practces and is committed o enhance the quality of life of all stakeholders and of the employees of the
company.

The hoard is mindful of the environment and is rcspcmsib'lliiy within the :'_‘Dn‘lmllﬂiry in which ir operatcs.

In cartying on its business, the company is fully aware and at the forefront w presceving the environment and
continuously review its palicies aimed ar respectng the environment and encouraging social responsibilityand
accountabilioy.

In conclusion, the board considers that the company has generally been in compliance with the principles
throughout the period vnder review as befits a company of this size and nature, Non-compliance with the

principles and the reasons thereot have been identified above.

Appraved by the board af directors and signed on its behalf on 28 March 2024 by:

MO .

Chatles Scerri Brian Friggieri
Chaitrman Director
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Statements of profit or loss

Notes The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €

Revenue 5 6,755,683 6,322,269 486,000 486,000
Cost of sales {4,218,277) (4.560,178) -
Gross profit 2,537,406 1,762,091 486,000 486,000
Administrative expenses {1,632,144) (1,675,070) (541,575) {BO8,727)
Operating profit {loss) 905,262 87,021 {55,575) (122,727)
Interest income B 1,624 - 269,880 270,152
Movement in fair value of
investment property 15 - 525,000 -
Other income 7 20,282 156,553 52,377
Finance costs B (317.224) {315,450) (251,332) (250,000)
Prafit (loss) before tax g 609,944 453,124 {37,027) (50,198)
Tax (expense) income 10 (159.177) (5.795) 6,033 17,569
Profit (loss) for the year 450,767 447,329 (30,994) (32,629)

Earnings per share " 9.02 8.95
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Statements of financial position

Assets
Non-current

Intangible assels

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use asset
Investmant in subsidiaries
Investment property
Deferred tax

Loans and receivables

Current

Inventories

Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables
Current fax receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

MNotes

12
13
14
16
15
17
18

18
18
20

21

14

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
1,552,079 1,579,242 -
£,269.808 €,722,092 = =
541,584 550,066 - -
- - 102,400 102,400
4,410,000 4,410,000 - -
1,304,835 1,450,727 25,688 19,655
429 456 50,535 5,802,679 5,460,000
14,507,762 14,763,562 5,930,767 5,582,055
738,481 788,600 - -
25,181 - 25,181 -
2,372,985 1,305,552 571,984 435,394
230 292 2536 2535
298,382 316,397 101,880 97,225
3,435,239 2,410,850 701,560 535,154
17,943,001 17,174,412 6,632,327 6,117,209
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Statements of financial position — continued

Equity
Capital and reserves

Called up issued share capital
Share premium
Shareholder's loan

Retained earnings (accumulated
losses)

Revaluation reserve
Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current

Debt securities in issue
Long-term borrowings
Lease liability

Current

Delbt securities in issue
Shori-term barrowings
Trade and other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Notes

22

23

24
25
26

24
25
27

15

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
50,752 50,752 50,752 50,752
4,330,783 4,330,783 600,000 600,000
4,381,982 3,912,069 (103,595) (72,601)
B79.365 898,511 - -
9,692,862 9,242 115 297,157 628,151
4,862,225 4,864,563 4,882,225 4,864,563
778,128 564,068 288,967 -
596,002 591,390 - -
6,256,355 6,020,012 5,171,192 4,864,563
17,662 17,662 17,662 17,662
00,379 60,243 25,181 -
1,885,723 1,834,380 821,138 606,833
1,993,764 1,812,285 863,978 624,495
8,250,119 7,832,297 6,035,170 5,489,058
17,943,001 17,174,412 6,632,327 6,117,209

The financial statements on pages 13 o 49 were approved by the board of divectors, authorised for issuc on

25 March 2024 and signed on ies behalf by:

S

-
Charles Scerri
Chairman

ﬁ M O i.“ﬁm-

Brian Fri
Director

1erl
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At 1 December 2021

Profit for the year
Total comprehensive
income

Transfar of excess
depraciation
At 30 Novermnber 2022

At 1 Decembear 2022
Prafit for the year
Total comprehensive

income

Transfer of excess
depreciation

16
Statement of changes in equity - the group
Called up
issued
share Share Shareholder's Retained Revaluation

:apital pmmium foan aarrﬂngs reserve Total

€ € € € € €

50,000 50,752 4,330,783 3429817 933 434 8,794 786

- . = 447,329 - 447 329

= = - 447,329 - 447,329

. . - 34,923 (34,823) z

50,000 50,752 4,330,783 3,912,069 898,511 97242115

50,000 80,752 4 330,783 3,912,068 B28 511 9.242 115

= = = A50 767 - 450 767

- - - 450,767 - 450,767

. 5 - 19,146 {19,146} -

50,000 50,752 4,330,783 4,381,982 879,365 9,692,682

At 30 November 2023

Reraned carnings include eurrent and prior petiod results as disclosed in the statement of profir ot loss,
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Statement of changes in equity — the company

Called up
issued
share Share Shareholder's Accumulated
capital premium loan losses Total
€ € € € €
At 1 December 2021 50,000 50,752 800,000 (38,972) 680,780
Loss for the year - - - (32,629) (32,629)
Total comprehensive loss - - - (32,629) (32,629)
At 30 November 2022 50,000 50,752 €00,000 (72,601) 628,151
Al 1 December 2022 50,000 50,752 600,000 (72,601) 628,151
Loss for the year - - - (30,994) (30,994)
Total comprehensive loss - - - (30,994) (30,994)
At 30 November 2023 50,000 50,752 600,000 (103,595) 507,157

Accurnulated losses include eurrent and prior period results as disclosed in the starement of profic or loss.
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Statements of cash flows
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ € € €

Operating activities
Prafit (loss) bafore tax 609,944 453124 (37.027) (50,198)
Adjustments for:
Galn on ravaluation of investment property - (525,000) - -
Deprecialion 521,694 510,743 - -
Amortisation 36,545 35408 - =
Baonds issue costs amortisation 17,662 17,662 17,662 17,662
Provision for expected credit loss 26217 - 34,550 -
Finance costs 317,224 315450 251,332 230,000
Interest income (1.624) - (269,880)  (270,152)
Tax paid {2,255) (4.691) - -
Operating profit (loss) befare working
capital movements 1,525,407 802,696 (3,383) (52,688)
Movement in inventories 50,148 (38,324) - -
Movemant in lrade and other receivables (1,110,967) (359,451) 214,256 191,016
Movement in trade and other payables 52,922 163,312 128,634 114,112
Cash flows generated from operations 517.510 568,233 339,527 252,440
Interest paid {22,293) (20,575) - =
Net cash from generated from operating
activities 495,217 547,658 339,527 252,440
Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipmant {63,410) {97,880) - -
Acquisition of intangible assels - (18,369) - :

Net cash used in investing activities (69,410) (116,249)
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Statements of cash flows - continued

19

Note The Group The Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €

Financing activities
Proceeds from bank loan 314,148 - 214,148 -
Repayment of bank loan {69,942) (65,470) (1,624} -
Interest payment for debt securities (249 663) (250,431) (249,663) (250,431)
Advances to related parties (397,753) - (397.753) -
Paymenls for lease llability {40,611) (40,344} -
Net cash used in financing activities (443,822) (360,245) (334,892) (250,431)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (18,015) 71,164 4,635 2,009
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 316,397 245233 97,225 85,218
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 21 298,382 316,397 101,860 97,225
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Nature of operations

Busy Bee Finance PLC is a public limited liability company incorporared in Malea. The campanys registered
address is Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina Road, Birkirkara CBD 4010, Malta, The company was formed
principally to act as a finance and investment company, in particular the fnancing or re-financing of the
funding requirements of related companies within the Busy Bee Group. The company was incorporated on
31 July 2018,

The company is a public company whose bonds sare publicly listed and traded on the Malt Swock Exchange,

The parent company is Busy Bee Limired with repisrered office and prinapal place of business at Busy Bee
Group, Zone 4, Mdina Road, Mrichel, Central Business District, Birkirkara CBD 4010, Malta,

2 General information, statement of compliance with international Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and going concern

The financial statements of the company and the consolidated financial statements of the group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IERS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) and as adopted by the Buropean Union (EU), and in accordance with
the Companics Act, Cap 386,

The ultimare parent company of the group is Busy Bee Limited, with registered office and principal place of
business at Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina Road, Central Business District, Mrichel, Bickirkam CBD 1040,
Malta. Busy Bee Limited prepares consolidated financial seatements which are available for public inspection
at the Malta Business Registry,

The fnancial statements are presented in curo (€), which is also the funcuonal currency of the company and
the proup.

The financial statements of the have been drwn up on a going concern basis. At the reporting date, the
company had ner current liabilitics of € 162,418 (2022: € 89 341,

However, of the company’s woral liabilides € 554,537 (2022: € 417,792} was owed o related pardes (see note
27). "The divectors have obtained assurance that the parent company and other related parties will not call for
payment of the amounct due before third party balances are settled.

Based on rhe foregoing, the directors confirm that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial statcments
oMl a golng, concern basis,
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3 New or revised standards or interpretations
3.1 New standards adopted at 1 January 2022

Amendments to IFRSs that became mandatonly effecuve in 2022, have no material impact on the group and
company’s financial results or positon. Accordingly, the group and company have made no changes to is
accounting policies in the year ended 30 November 2023.

3.2 Standards, amendmenis and interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet
effective and have not been adopted early by the group and company

At the dare of authorisarion of these financial statements, several new bur not yver effective Standards,
amendments to existing standards, and Interpretations have been published by the IASB. None of these
smndards, amendments or interpreatdons have been adopeed carly by the group and company.

Management anticipates thar all relevant pronouncements will be adopred for the first period beginning on or
after the effective dare of the pronouncement. New standacds, amendments and interpretations not adopred
in the current year, have not been disclosed as they are not expected to have a material impact on the group
and company’s financial statements,

4 Significant accounting policies
4.1 Basis for preparation

The group and company’s financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and under the historical
cost convention. Monetary amounts are expressed In euro (€) and are rounded to the nearest euro.

The accounting policies applied by the company are consistent with those used in the previous period.

The consolidated financial statcments have been prepared from the financial starements of the companics
comptising the proup as demiled in notes to the consolidared financial statements,

4.2 Presentation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in aceordance with TAS 1 Prerewtadion of Fiancial Siatements
(revised 2007), The group and company did not have any items classified a3 “orher comprehensive income’,

4.3 Basis of consalidation

The group’s financial statements consolidate thase of the parent company and all of its subsidiaries at 30
November 2023, Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has the power to control the financial and
operating policies. The group obtains and exercises control through more than half of the voung nghrs, All
subsidiarics have a reporting dare of 30 Novemnber.

All transactions and balances berween group companies are eliminated on consplidation, including unrealised
grins and losses on transactions between group companies. Where unreglised losses including depreciation
expense on intra-group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlving asset is also tested for
impalrment from a group perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiatics have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the group.

Profit ar loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
recognised from the effective dare of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.

The consolidared financial statements have been prepared from the financial statements of the companies set
out in note 16.
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4.4 Business combinations

The group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations, The consideration
rransferred by che group to obtain control of a subsidiary is caleulated as the sum of the acquisition-clate fair
values of assets transferred, labilides incurred and the equity interests issued by the group, which includes the
fair value of any asser or liability arising from a contingenr considerarion armngement. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred.

Lf the group acquires a controlling interest in a business in which it previously held an equity interest, chat
equity interest is remeasuted to fair value ar the acquisition date with any resulting gain or loss recognised in
prafit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Consideration transferred as part of a business combination does nor include amounts related to the
sertlement of pre-existing relationships. The gain or loss on the settlement of any pre-exisong reladonship is

recognised in the starements of profic or loss.

Assers acquired and liabilities assumed are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

4.5 Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the group and
company for goods supplied or services rendered, excluding Value Added Tax (VAT) and wade discounts.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the group and company follow a S-step process:

1, Identfving the conrract with a customer

2. ldendfying the performance obligatons

3. Derermining the transactuon price

4, Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satsfied.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when performance obligations have been satisfied
and the consideration ro which the company expects to be enntded to can be measured reliably.

The group and company evaluate all contractual arrangements entered into and evaluate the nature of the
promised goods or services, and right and obligations under the arrangemenr, in derermining the narure
of its performance obligations. Whete such performance obligations are capable of being distinct and are
distinet in the contexst of the contract, the consideration the group or company expect to be ennted under
the arrangement is allocated to each performance obliganon based on their telanve stand-alone selling
prices. Revenue is recognised ar an amount equal to the ransaction price allocated to the specific
performance obligation when it is satisfied, cither at a point in time or pver fime, as applicable, based on
the pactern of transfer of control,

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the princpal outstanding and at the cffectve
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash recelpts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the asset's net carrying amount.

Food and baverage revenues

Revenue from the sale of food and beverages is recognised when or as the group transfers control of the
asscts to the customer. Control is transferred at a point in time, when the customer takes undisputed
delivery of the goods.
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Rental income
Operating keases

A lease is an agreement wherehy the lessor conveys to the lessee in rcturn for a payment of scrics of
pavments the right to use an asset for an agreed periad of dme. A leasc 1s classified as a finance lease if it
teansters substanoally all the risks and rewards incidental o ownership of the underlying asser and
classified as an operating lease if it does not.

[Lease income from operating leases shall be recognised in income on a steaight line basis over the lease
term.

4.6 Expense recognition

Expenses are recognised in the statements of profic or loss upon utilisation of the service or at the date of their
origin.

4.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construcdon ot production of @ gualifving asser are
capitalised during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported in *finance
costs’.

4.8 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in euro (€), which is also the group and company’s functional curtency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Farclpn curtency transactions are translated into the functional currencey of the group and company using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the mansactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and
losses resuldng from the serdement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency at year-cnd exchange rates are recognised in the starements of profit ar loss.

Non-monctary irems are not retranslated ar yvear-end and are measured ar historical cost {rranslared using the
exchange rates ar the transaction darc),

4.9  Intangible assets

An intangible assct is recognised if it is probable that the expected future economic bencfits thar are
attributable to the asset will flow to the group and the cost of the asser can be measured reliably.

Intangible assers are initially measured ar cost. Expenditure on an intangible asser is recognised as an
expense in the period when it is incurred unless it forms part of the cost of the asset that meets the
recognition criteria,

The useful life of intangible asscts is asscssed to determine whether it is finite or indefinite. Intangible
asscts with a finite uscful bfc arc amornsed. Amordsadon 1s charged to profic or loss so as to write off the
cost of inmangible assets less any esumated residual value, over their esimated useful lives. The
amortisaton methad applied, the residual value and the useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, ar the end of each reporting period.

The following uscful life is applicd:

Softwara 25%
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Amuortisation has been included within ‘administranve expenses’ in the profic or loss,

Intangible asscrs with indefinite useful lives are not systematically amortised and are tested for impairment
annually whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The usgeful life of these
asscts 15 reviewed annually to determine whether their indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable,

Intangible assers are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from their
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derccogniton represent the difference benween the ner disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrving amoeunt, and are included in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

The brand comptises the ‘Busy Bec’ brand name which was acquired from the parent company of the group.
The brand does not have a finite life and 1s measured ar cost less accumulared impairment losses. The brand s
regarded as having an indefinire life, since based on all relevane facrors, there is no foresecable limir to the
period over which the asset is expected to generate cash inflows.

4.10 Property, plant and equipment

The group’s property, plant and cqupment are classified into the following classes; long leaschold
property, plant and machinery, office equipment, motor vehicle, furniture and fittings and fixtures.
Property, plant and equipment are initally recorded at cost. Except for long leasehold property, they are
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Land and buildings are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Subsequent to inital recognition, long leasehold properry is stated at fair value at the date of the
revaluaton less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent impaivment losses. Revalued
amounts are fair values based on appraisals prepared by external professional valuers once every two years
or more frequently if market factors indicare a marerial change in fair value, Revaluations are made for the
entire class of long leaschold property and with sufficient regularity such thar the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the date of the statement
af financial pesition. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is climinated against the
gross carrving amount of the asser.

Any revaluaton increase arising on the revaluatdon is eredited o the revaluaton reserve unless it reverses
a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in the profit or loss, in which case, the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in carrying
amount arising on the revaluation is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, held in the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised on disposal or when no future ¢conomic benefits are
expected from their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition represent the difference
1'}:'.‘\’3’:1:11 t‘hl: net LH,‘;PfJS'ﬂl Prﬂl:cl:dh1 iF ﬂﬂ}‘ ﬂﬂl_“ rhl: Eﬂrr}'iﬂg Aanmeun t‘ ﬂnd are iﬂcIlJ(LC{I in tl'lc statements UE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period of derecagnition.

Depreciation is provided at rates intended to write off the cost of the assers or revalued amounts over
their expected useful lives, The annual rates used are as follows:

Long lzasehold property 2% Straight line on a monthly basis
Plant and machinary 7% Straight line on a monthly basis
Office equipment 20% Straight line on a monthly basis
Motor vehicles 20% Stralght line on a monthly basls
Furniture and fittings 10% Straight line on a monthly basis

Fixtures 5-10% Straight line on a monthly basis
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4.11 Impairment testing of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

For the purposcs of assessing impairment, asscts are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are lacgely
independent cash inflows (cash-gencerating unies). As a result, some asses are wsted individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-gencratng umic level.

All individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate thar the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impatrment loss is tecognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit's earrying amount
exceeds ity recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of irs fair value less costs o sell and s
vilue in use. To determine the value in use, the group’s management estimates expected future cash flows from
each cash-generaring unir and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-gencraung unic and reflecr their
respecrive risk profiles as assessed by the group’s management.

Impairment losses are recognised immediately in the starements of profit or loss, Impairment losses for cash-
generating units are chatged pro ram to the assers in the cash-generaring unit. All assers are subsequendy
reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment
charge that has been recognised is reversed if the eash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrving
amaune,

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount rhar would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

4.12 Leases
The group as a lessee

For contracts entered into, the group considers whether & contract is, or concains a leasc. A lease is defined as
*a contract, or pare of a conteact, that conveys the righe to use an asset (the underlving asset) for a period of
time in exchange for consideration”. To apply this definition the group assesses whether the contract meets
three key evaluatdons which are whether:

*  the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the conrct or implicitly
specified by being idendfied ar the nme the asser is made available to the group;

e the group has the dght to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
assct throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract; and

e the group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset chroughout the period of use. The group
assesses whether it has the right to direct *how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the
pericd of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the group recognises a right of use asser and a lease liabilicy on the strement of
financial position. The right-of-use asser is measured ar cost, which is made up of the inital measurement of
the lease hability, any initial direct costs incurred by the group, an estimate of any eosts to dismantle and remaove
the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the commencement date (ner of
any incentives received).

The group depreciates the right-of-use assers on a straighe-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful lite of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.
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Ar lease commencement dare, the proup measures the lease hability ac the present value of the lease payments
unpaid ar thar date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rare is readily available or the
group’s incremental borrowing rate.

l.ease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee and payments arising from oprions reasonably cerein to be exercised,

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liabiliey will be reduced for payments made and inereased for interest.
It is remeasured o reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed
parments.

When the lease liability 15 remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asser, or
profit and loss if the nghe-of-use asset is already reduced o zero.

On the statement of financial position, the group has opted ro disclose the tight-of-usc asscts and leasc liabilitics
as scparate financial starement line rems.

Operating leases as a lessee

All other leases are treated as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the
statements of profit or loss on a straighe line basis over the lease term, where the lessee does not bear
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership nssociated with the asser. Associared costs, such as
maintenance and INsurance, are cspms::d s incurred,

4.13 Investment property

Investment property is property held to eacn cencals or for capiral appreciadon or both, [nvestment
property is recognised as an gsser when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are associated
with the investment property will low to the enterprise and the cost can be mersured reliably. Investment
property is initially recognised ar cost, including transaction coses,

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value unless the investment property
is classified or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale, in which case, the investment
properry is measured ar the lower of its carrving amount and fair value less costs to sell. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the changes arise. The fair value movement on investment property, net of tax, is reclassified in the
statement of changes in equity from retained carnings to the revaluation reserve.,

Investment property 1s detecognised on disposal or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future cconomic benefits are expected from its disposal. Gains or losses on derecognition represent the
difference berween cthe ner disposal of proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount, and are recognised in
the starements of profit ot loss and other comprehensive income in the period of derecognition.

4.14 Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is included in the company’s starement of financial position ar cost less any
impairment loss that may bave arisen, Income from investment is recognised only to the extent of distributions
received by the company from post-acquisition profits. Distributions received in excess of such profits are
regarded as a recovery of the investment and are recognised asa reduction of the cost of the investment.

Arcach reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amount of its investments in subsidiaries to determine
whether there is any mdication of impairment and, if any such indicanon exises, the recoverable amount of che
mvestment 15 esamated. An impairment loss is the amount by which the canrying amount of an invesmment
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs wosell and value
in use. An impairment loss thar has been previously recognised is reversed if the carrying amounr of rthe
investment exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent thar the canrving
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amount of the investment does not exceed the carrying amounr that would have been determined if no
impairment loss had been previously recognised. Impairment losses and reversals are recognised immiediarely
in statcrents of profic or loss.

4.15 Inventories

Inventories are smted ar the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost includes all expenscs divectly
attributable toncquiring the inventories and to bringing them to their existing location and condinon. Financing
costs are not kken into consideration. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less any applicable selling expenses.

4.16 Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group and company become a party to the

contracturl provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash tlows from the financial asser expire,
ot when the financial asser and all substantial risks and rewards are reansferred. A fnancial lability 1s
derecognised when it is extnguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing companent and are measured at
the transaction price in accordance with IFRS 15, all financial assets are inidally measured at fair value adjusted
Fr]r Ifﬂnﬁﬂ.cfi{]n costs {".‘.'l'llfl'L" JIF[J“E'{I.I'}I':}.

Financial assers are classified inro the following caregories:

amortised cost
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI),

The group and company do not have any financial assets categorised as FVTPL and FVOCL in the periods
presented.

The classification 15 derermined by both:

e ihe entity’s business model for managing the financial asset; and
e the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the Anancial assce

All income and expenses relatng ro finaneial assers that are recognised in the stacements of profit or loss arc
presented wirhin *finance costs’ or ‘finance income’.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Finanetal avsetr at avarifsed enct
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assers meet the following condidons (and are not

designated as FVTPL):

o thev are held within 2 business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and colleer
its contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial assets give tise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount aurstanding,
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Afterinital recognition, these are measured ac amottised cost using the effective interest method, Diseounting
is omitted where the effeet of discounting is immaterial. The group and company’s cash and eash equivalents,
loans and receivables fall into this category of financial instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

IITR.,S 9’5 impnjnnl:nt rL'LlLIIITL“ITI.i:I'I.['.E use Fnrward—iu:_:l:ing i;nﬁ_lrmnric]n tes rﬁ:CL}gﬂiSf C.‘&Pcctl:l:] l:'l'l.".'dit Il‘)SSCH e thc
“expected credit loss (ECL) model’. Instruments within the scope of the new requirements included loans and
ather debr-type financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI, trade recetvables, contracr assets
recoenised and measured under IFRS 15 and loan commimments and some financial guarantee contracts (for
the issuer) that are nor measured ar faie value through profit or loss.

The group and company consider a broad range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring
expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forccases thar
affecr the expecred collectability of the future cash flows of the instrament.

In applying this forward-locking approeach, a distinction is made berween:

® finandal instruments that have not deteriotared significancy in credir guality since inirial
recognition or that have low credit risk (*Stage 1'); and

o financial inscruments that have deteriorared significandy in credic quality sinee inirial recognition
and whose eredit risk is not low (‘Stage 2%,

Srage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment ar the reporting date.

“12-month expected eredit losses’ are recognised For the first category while ‘lifetime expected credit losses’
are recognised for the second category.

Measurement of the expected credir losses is determined by a probabilin-weighted csumate of credic losses
over the expected life of the financial insrrument.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

‘The group and company’s financial liabiliries include barrowings, trade and other pavables and lease liabiliaes.

Financial liabilitics are initially measured ar fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
unless the group and the eompany designate a financial linbility at fair value through profit or loss,

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an mstrument’s fair value that are reported in the
statements of profit or loss are included within "finance costs” or finunce income’.

Offsetting financial instruments

Finaneial assets and liabilities are offser and the net amount reported in the starement of finandal positon
when there 1s 2 legally enforceable righr to ser off the recognised amounts and there is an intenton to serte
on & et basis, or realise the asser and setde the liabilioy simultaneously.

417 Income taxes

Tax expense recognised in the statements of profic or loss comprises the sum of deferred rax and current rax
not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equicy.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to, ot claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid ar the reporting date. Current tax is pavable
an taxable profit, which ditfers from the profit in the financial starements, Calculation of current tax is based
on tax rates and tax laws thar have been enacred or substanovely enacted by the end af the reporting period.
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Deferred income taxes are caloulated using the hability method on omporary differences berween the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilitics and their tax bases. However, deferred tax is not provided on the initial
l—[_'l:i_]g";ti[]n {]f an assct or ]i;'li]illr!" I,J.n]c:iﬁ ti‘ll: |‘c‘|ﬂtc{] Irﬂﬂﬁﬂcrinﬂ ‘15 i lJuﬁi.n(:.‘;S E(j[nhjliﬂtinlj or Q.FFEE‘:S. fax or
accuuntlng pro fit.

Deferred rax assers and habilioes are caleulared, withour discounting, ar tax rates thar are expecred w apply o
their respective period of realisation, provided they are emacted or substantively enacted by the end of che
reporting period. Deferred rax labilities ave always provided For in full.

Defetred mx assets are recognised to the gxtent that it is probable that they will be able ro be utilised against
furure taxable income.

Diferred nix assers and liabilides are offset only when the group and company have a right and intenrion to set
off current tax assets and Labilities from the same taxaton authority.

Changes in deferred tax assers or habilides are recognised as 2 component of tax income or cxpense in the
statements of profic or loss, excepr where they relare wo irems thar are recognised in other comprehensive
income or divectly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognised in orher comprehensive
income or equity, respectively.

4,18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits. Bank overdrafrs are included in
liabilities,

4.19 Equity and reserves

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares thar have been issued.

Share premium includes any premium reccived on issuc of the share capital. Any transaction costs

assaciated with the issuing of shares are deducted from share premivm, net of any related income tax
benefits,

Revaluation surplus represents the increase in fair value of property,

Shareholders® loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable at the discretion of the group and the
company. Consequently, this has been classified with equity.

Rerained earnings (accumulated losses) include all current and prior period resulrs.

4.20 Employee benefits

The group and company contribute towards the state pension in accordance with local legislation. The
anly obligation of the group and company is to make the required contributions. Costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

4.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an outtlow
of economic resources from the group or company and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount
of the outtlow may still be uncerrain. A presenr obligation artses from the presence of a legal or constructive
commitment that has resulted from past events, for example, product warranties granred, legal dispures or
ONCTOUS COMITACTS.
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Restrucruring provisions are recognised only if a detailed formal plan for the restructuring has been developed
and implemented, or management has at least announced the plan's main features to those affected by it
Provisions are not recognised for future operatng losses.,

Provisions are measured ar the estimared expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
maost reliable evidence available at the reporung darte, including the tisks and uncerraintes associated with the
present oblipanon. Where there are 2 number of similar obligadons, the likelihood thar an outflow will be
requited in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as o whole.  Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

In those cases where the possible outflow of econemic resources as a result of present obligatons is considered
improbable or remote, no liability is recognised.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporang date and adjusted to reflect the current hest estimare.

4.22 Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation
uncertainty

When preparing the group and company’s financial statements, management makes a number of judgements,

estimates and assumptions about the recognition and measurcment of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses

The following are judgements made by management in applying the accountng policies of the group and
company thar have the most significant effect on these financial statements.

Significant management judgements

Recognition of pravision and contingencies

Judgement is exercised by management to distinguish berween provisions and contingencies. Policies on
recagnition of provisions and contingencies are discussed in note 4.21.

Recoanition of deferred tax asset

The extent to which deferred tax asser can be tecognised is based on an assessment of the probability of the
group and company’s future raxable income against which the deferred tax asser can be udlised. The assessment
is based on rthe latest approved budpet foreeast and if a positive Forecast of taxable income indicates the
probable use of a deferred rax asset thar deferred rax asset is recognised in full,

Estimation uncertainty

Informartion about cstimates and assumptions that have the most signiticane cffect on recognition and
measurcment of assers, liabilites, income and expenses is provided below. Actual resules may be substanaally
different

Useful lives of depreciable assets

The group esumates the usetul lives of plant and equipment based on the period over which the assets are
expected to be available for use. The estimared useful lives of plant and cquipment are reviewed periodically
and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets,
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Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The group cannat readily determine che interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities, The IBR is the mte of interese that the group would have w
pay to barrow over a similar term, sind with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The [BR therefore reflects whar the group
“would have ro pay’, which requires estimarion when no observable rates are available or when they need o be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The proup estimates the 1BR using obscrvable inputs
(such as marker interest races) when available and is tequited to make cerrain entry-specific estimates (such as
the company’s stand-alone credit rating).

Inventories

The company deteemines whether there are damaged, obsolete and slow moving inventories penodically w
evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for inventories written down, This requires an estimation of the
expected future saleability of inventory items based on a review of the ageing of inventory iems.

Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing Impairment, management estmares the recoverable amount of each asset or 2 eash-generacing unit
based on expected future eash flows and uses an interest rare to cileulate the present value of those cash flows,
Estmation uncereainty relates ro assumprions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable
discounr rate. Though management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected
in the financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in those assumptions may
matetially affect the assessiment of recoveruble values and any resulting impaitnient loss could have a material
adverse effect on rhe results of operations.

5 Revenue
The Group The Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Service fees - - 486,000 486,000
Rental income 146,941 147,213 - -
Royally income 351,703 3zZr 419 . =
Retail income 6,257,639 5,847 637 - -
6,755,683 6,322,269 486,000 486,000

There are no direcr operating costs associared with service fees.

[ Interest income

The Group The Company
2023 202z 2023 2022
€ £ € €

Interest income from group companies 1,624 - 269,880 270,152
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r Other income

Other income
Covid wage supplement

8 Finance costs

Interest on debl securities in issus

Interest on bank loans

Interest expense on lease liability

9 Profit (loss) before tax

Profit (loss) before taxation is stated after charging:

Staff costs
Directars’ remunaration
Auditors' remuneration

Depreciation and amortisation

Tax campliance fees

Wages and salaries
Sacial securities
Wages recharged

The average number of employees (based pro-rara on a 40-hour week) during the year were:

Administration
Operations

32
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € £
20,282 - - -
B 156,653 - 5237
20,282 156,553 - 52,377
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
249,708 250,000 249,708 250,000
22,293 20,575 1,624 -
45223 44 B75 - -
317,224 315,450 251,332 250,000
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
L € € €
1,509,950 1,924 692 136,544 292,809
221,486 2158641 221,486 215,641
13,040 9.710 4,300 4,100
558,239 546,151 = =
1,905 1,945 480 440
The Group The Campany
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
3,515,046 3,867,781 741,310 783,982
250,923 244,480 35,521 35,354
{2,034,533) (1,871 928) (418,801) {(310,B86)
1,731,436 2,140,333 358,030 508,450
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
No. No. No. No.
13 13 11 i1
123 132 B 8
136 145 16 17
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10 Tax (expense) income

The relationship benween the expected tax (expense) income based on the effective tax rare of Busy Bee Finance
PLC ac 354% {?,['IEE: 33";7:.] and the wax (e:q[l-r:nsc:] income :Lcl;u:ﬂl],; L‘L:Eugl‘liscd in the statemenes oof pmﬁt or loss
can be reconciled as follows:

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ £ € €
Profit (loss) before tax 609,944 453,124 (37,027) {50.198)
Tax rate 35% 35% 35% 35%
Expected tax (expense) income at the
applicable rate {213,480) {158,593) 12,859 17,569
Tax effect of permanent differences - 184,130 -
Disallowed expenses (11,962) (42,335) -
Group loss surrendered at no cost - 11,003 & =
Ex-gratia paymenis (6,926) - (6,926} -
Movement in unutilised tax credits 73,191 - -
Tax (expense) income {159,177) (5,795) 6,033 17,569
Comprising;
Current lax (13,288) (2,215) - -
Deferred tax (145,892) (3,580) 8,033 17,569
(159,177) (5,795) 6,033 17,569

11 Earnings per share

The earnings per share has been caleulated on the group profit for the year of €450,767 (2022: € 447 5329)
divided by the number of shares in issue as ar year end.

The Group
2023 2022
No No
Weighted average number of shares in issue 50,000 50,000
€ €

Earnings per share 9.02 B.05
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12 Intangible assets - The group

Brand Software Total
€ € €

Cost
At 1 December 2021 1,500,000 116,103 1,616,102
Additions - 18,368 18,369
At 30 November 2022 1,500,000 134,472 1,634,472
Al 1 December 2022 1,500,000 134,472 1,634,472
Additions ———— . ——
At 30 November 2023 1,500,000 134,472 1,634,472
Amortisation
Al 1 December 2021 - 29,204 28,204
Charge for the year BN S 26,026
At 30 November 2022 - 55,230 - 55230
Al 1 Decamber 2022 = 55,230 55,230
Charge for the year 2 27,163 27,163
At 30 Novernber 2023 = 82,393 82,393
Carrying amount -
At 30 November 2022 1,500,000 79,242 1,579,242
At 30 November 2023 1,500,000 - 52,079 1,552,079

‘The group, through Busy Bee 1P Limited, acquired the “Busy Bee” brand from the parent company fora
consideration of € 1,500,000 This value was determined 11},' ind:pcnﬂtnr waluers using the Rovalty Relief
method on the basis of the projected Income statements of the business as at the end of 2018,

Following the above acquisidon, the group entered into an agreement with related parcties by virtue of which
the latrer acquited the right to use the “Busy Bee™ brand on their products against a payment of 4% (2022:
4%) of revenue penerated by them, For the year ended 30 November 2023, the group received royalty fees
amounting to € 351,103 (2022; € 327 419).

The value of the beand was determined by discounting the forecast future cash flows representng royalty
payments saved by for a sis-year explicit period 2024 - 2029, The following are the key assumptions
underlving the projecuons:

o revenue derived from use of the Busy Bee brand is based on operational projections. Revenue is
assumed to increase by 2% per annum.
* g discount rate of 12.8% was applied to the operating projectons.

The brand was tested for impairment by the directors whose work confirmed that since the preparation of
the valuation on which the transaction was based in 2019 there were no material changes which require the
recognition of an impairment charge as at 30 November 2023,
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The fair value of the long leasehold property of the group is based an the valuadon carried out by an
independent architecr dated 14 November 2022, The archivecr is qualified and has experience in the valuation
of properties of similar Iocatinns and caregories. No revaluation of property was performed in 2025,

Details of the long leasehold property and the information about the fair value hicrarchy as at 30 November
2022 and 2023 arc as follows:

Date of

Type of property Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total valuation
€ € € €

Commercial property - - 3,680,000 3,680,000 14112022

There were no transfers benween the hierarchy levels during the period.

For long leaschold property carcgorised under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, che following approach and
inputs were used:

Type of property Valuation technique Inputs Sensitivity

Commerial proparty Incoma approach Capitalisation rate at 8% The higher the
a yearly rental income of capitalisation rate and the
€ 659,350 and a sinking  sinking fund rate, the lower
fund at the rate of 3%, the fair value.

net of the other property,
plant and equipmentat  The higher the rental
the date of valuation. income, the higher the fair

value.

14 Right-of-use asset - The group

Details of the group’s right-of-use asset and its carrying amount can be analysed as follows:

Leased
property
€
Cost
At 1 December 2021 [ at 30 Movember 2022 579.110
At 1 December 2022 / at 30 November 2023 579,110
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 December 2021 18,762
Charge for the year 9382
At 30 November 2022 28144
At 1 December 2022 28,144
Charge for the year 9,382
At 30 November 2023 37,526
Carrying amount at 30 November 2022 550866
Carryving amount at 30 November 2023 541,584

"The depreciation charge on right-of-use asscts was included in the statements of profic or loss under
“administeative expenses”.
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15 Investment property - The group

Freehold
land and
buildings
L 3
Fair value
At 1 December 2021 3,885,000
Movemenl in fair value 525,000
At 30 November 2022 4,410,000
At 1 December 2022 7 30 November 2023 4,410,000
Carrying amount
At 30 November 2022 4,410,000
At 30 November 2023 4,410,000

The fair values of immovable propettcs have been arrived ar by independent valuers not related ro the
group having appropriare qualifications and experience in the valuaton of properties in Malt. The fair
value of the investment property is based on the estimated marker value of the property as per architect’s
valuadon dated 14 November 2022, Changes in the earrving amounts presented in the statement of
financial positon can be summarised as follows:

Derails of the investment property and rhe informanon abour the fair value hicrarchy as at 30 November
2022 and 2023 arc as follows:

Type of property Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Date of

€ € € € Valuation
Commercial property - 1,860,000 - 1,660,000 14,11.2022
Commercial property - - 1,220,000 1,220,000 14,11.2022
Residential 4 1,530,000 1,530,000 14.11.2022

Total - 3,190,000 1,220,000 4,410,000

There was no revaluation of investment property in 20235,

For investment property categorised under Level 2 of the fair value of hicrarchy, the following approaches on
inputs were used:

Type of property Valuation technigue Inputs

Commercial property amounting to Markst approach The value of the properly was based on the
€ 1,660,000 (2022: € 1,660,000) selling price of similar commercial property.
Residential property amaounting to Market approach The value of the property was based on

€ 1,530,000 (2022: € 1,530,000) market prices for comparable advertised

properties taking into account the size, it out
of the subject units, location of the property
and current situation of the residential property
market, Valuation was based cn a
conservative rate of € 1,800/sq.m over the
gnfire area.
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For rthe invesrment property categotised under Level 3 of the fair value hicrarchy, the following approach and
inputs were used:

Sensitivity

The higher the capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value. The higher the
rental income, the higher the fair

Inputs

Capitalisation rate of 8.5%
and yearly rental income of
€ 683.000 (2022 € 63.000).

Type of property Valuation technique
Commercial property Income approach

16 Investment in subsidiaries - The company

value,

The amount stated in the statements of financial position is analysed as follows:

Cost

At 30 November 2022 / At 30 Novemnber 2023

Set out the below details of the subsidiaries held direetly by the group:

Subsidiary companies Registered Office Percentage  Nature of the
Hﬂldil'lg business
2023 2022
Yo Yo
Busy Bee Properries Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina Lo 10 Immovable properey
Limated Road, Central Business Distiicet,
Bitkirkara, CBLD 4010}, Malta
Busy Bee [P Limired Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina Lo0 [ () Intelleceual property
Road, Central Business District,
Birkirkara, CBLD 4010, Malta
Busy Bee Manufacturing  Busy Bee Group, Zone 4, Mdina 100 L0 Manufacturing
Limired Road, Central Business Districe,
Birkirkara, CBL2 4010, Malta
17 Deferred tax
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Unabsorbed tax losses and capital allowances 540,288 800,297 13,596 19,655
Excess of capital allowances over depraciatior (415,574) (443,082) . :
Unabsorbed tax credit 2,083,926 2,010,735 - -
Right of use asset 20,683 15,749 - -
Revaluation of property (408,672) (408,672) - -
Intangible asset (525,000) (525,000) = -
Provision for expected credit loss 9,176 - 12,082 -
1,304,835 1,450,727 25,688 19,655

102,400
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18 Loans and receivables
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €

Financial assets:
Amounits due from fellow subsidiary 397,753 - 397,753 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 5,460,000 5,460,000
Accrued income 59,064 50,535 - -
Provision for expected credit loss {2,180) - (20,803) S
Loans and receivables 454,637 50,535 5,827 860 5,460,000
Comprising:
Non-current 429 456 50,535 5.B02 678 5,460,000
Current 25,181 = 25,181 -

454 637 50,535 5,827 BBO 5,460,000

loans due from subsidiaries amounting to € 4,860,0000 (2022: € 4,860,000) are unsecured, bear interest at
5.5% per annum and are repayable by 28 June 2029, Loans to subsidiary amounting to € 600,000 (2022:
€ 600,000) are unsecured, interest free and repayable ac the discretion of the subsidiary.

During the current year, the company granted a loan of € 650,000 to a fellow subsidiary. The outstanding
balance as at vear end amounts to € 397,753, The remaining balance of € 252,247 was unitised as at year end.
"I'he loan s subject o 3% interest per annum and repavable by monchly instalmenes of € 5,800 Furthermore,

the loan has a moratorium of one year from drawdown date.

19 Inventeories

The Group
2023 2022
€ £
Goods held for re-sale 738 461 788,608

The Company
2023 2022
€ €

1n 2023, a toral of € 2,810,551 (2022: € 2,632,263) of inventorics was included in the stacements of profitor

liags.

20 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables consise of the following;

The Group The Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
€ £ € €

Current
Trade receivablas 36,668 40,786 - -
Amount due from ultimate paremt 45,723 = = -
Amounts due from subsidianes = - 445,403 33,77
Amounts due from related parlies 2,283 764 1,244,036 7,952 -
Prowision for expectad credit loss (24,037) - (4,656) -
Accrued income 4,420 5179 114,230 115,704
Other receivables 7.004 7,265 - -
Financial assets 2,353 542 1,297,266 562,929 429,475
Advance payments 3,223 - 3.222 -
Prepayments 16,220 8,286 5,833 5,919
Trade and other receivables — current 2,372,985 1,305,552 571,984 435,394
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Amounts owed from ulrimate parent, subsidiaries and relared parties are unsecured, intetest-free and have
no tixed date of repayment.

The carrying valuc of trade and other receivables is considered a reasonable approximadion of fair value,

21 Cash and cash equivalents

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € [3
Bank deposits 298 382 318,397 101,860 97,225
Cash and cash equivalents in the
statement of financial position/cash flows 298,382 316,397 101,860 97,225

The group and company did not have any restrictions on irs cash in hand and at bank ar year end.

22 Called up issued share capital

The share capiral of Busy Bee Finance PLC consists only of ordinary shares with a par value of € 1. All shares
are equally eligible ro receive dividends and repayment of capital, and represent one vore at the sharcholders®
mecting of the company.

2023 2022
€ €
Shares issued and fully paid at 30 November
50,000 ordinary shares of € 1 each 50,000 50,000
Shares authorised at 30 November
50,000 ordinary shargs of € 1 each 50,000 50,000

23 Shareholder's loan

Sharchaolder’s loan is unsccured, intceest-free and is tepayable at the option of the borrowet. This loan has
therefore been classified with equiry.



Busy Bee Finance PLC a1
Report and consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 30 Movember 2023

24 Debt securities in issue

The Group The Company

2023 2022 2023 2022

€ € € £

5% unsecured bonds redeemable 2022 4,899 887 4,882,225 4,890 8387 4,882 225

Nominal value

5% unsecured bands redeemable 2028 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issue cost 174,916 174,916 174,916 174,916
Accumulated amortisation (74,803) (657,141) (74,803) {657,141)
Closing net book amount 100,113 117,775 100,113 117,775
Amortised cost at 30 November 4,899 887 4,882,225 4,899,887 4,882,225
Falling due within one year 17,662 17,662 17,662 17,662
Falling due between two to five years 70,648 70,648 70,648 70,648
Falling due between over five years 4811577 4,793.915 4 811 577 4,793 915
4,899 887 4,882,225 4,899 887 4,882,225

By virtue of the company admission document dated 17 June 2019, the company has issued 5,000,000 5%
unsecured bonds of 2 nominal value of € 100 per bond. The bonds are redeemable at their nominal value on
28 June 2029,

Interest on the bonds is due and pavable annually on 28 June of each year.
The bonds have been admiteed on Prospects MTF, a multilateral rading Facility operated by the Malta Stock

Exchange. The carrying amount of the bonds is et of direet issue costs of € 100,113 (2022: € 117,775) which
are being amortised over the life of the bonds.

25 Borrowings

The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €
Falling due within one year:
Bank loan 90,379 60,243 25181 -
Short-term borrowings 90,379 60,243 25181 -
Falling due belween two and five years:
Bank loan 623,128 409,059 288 967 -
Amounts owed to other related parties 155,000 155,000 - -
Long-term borrowings 778,128 564,059 288,967 -

Total borrowings 868,507 624,302 314,148 =
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Bank loans

One of the subsidiarics has a bank loan amounting to € 399,360 (2022: € 469,302). The loan is secured by a
gencral hypothec over the substdiany’s assets, by a speaial hyputhec over property owned by the subsidiary, by
pledges taken over various insurance policics, by guarantees of the parent company, and by personal
guarantees of the directors, [r bears interest at 4% per annum and 18 repayable by monthly insralments of

€ 7,409 inclusive of interest. After expiry of a fixed-rate period of four years, the loan is repayable by monthly
inscalments of € 7,551,

The company has a bank loan amounting o € 650,000, The urlised amounr as ar year ead amounted to

€ 314,148, The unutlised amount was withdrawn by the company after year end. The loan is secured by
guarantees given by the parent company and a subsidiary. Lt bears interest ax 3% per annum and is repayable
by monthly instalments of € 5,800 inclusive of interest. Furthermore, the loan has a mortorium of one vear
from deawdown dare.

The company has an unutilised bank loan amounting to € 200,000, The facility is to be repaid over a period
of twelve vears inclusive of a one-year moratorium. It bears interest ar 3% per annum and is repayable by
monthly insmlments of € 1,785 inclusive of interest

Amounts owed to other relaled parties

Amounts owed to other related parties are unseoured, mterese-free and have no fised date of repayment.

26 Lease liability — the group

Lease lability is included in the starements of financial posinon as follows:

2023 2022

€ €

Mon-current 596,002 591,390
596,002 591,380

The group has a lease for the Busy Bee Mnichel Facrory, The lease is included as 4 right-of-use asset in the
starements of financial position (sce note 14).

Fach lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contracrual right for the group to sublet the
asset to another party, the right-ofuse asset ean only be used by the group. Leases are cither non-cancellable
or may only be cancelled by incurring 4 substantive termination fee. The group is prohibited from lending or
transferring the undetlying leased assers. Upon termination, the right-of-usc assers shall be returned to the
lender in goad condition as when received by the group, except for reasonable wear and tear, The group
shall ensure that these assers ave ar all ames kepr in a good state of repair and return in their original
condinon ar the end of the lease.

Mo of right-of- Range of Average Mo of leases No of leases with
use assets remaining remaining with extension termination
Right-of-use asset leased ferm lease term options options

Mriehel Factory 1 66 years G6 years - -
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The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease paymenrs at
30 November 2023 were as follows:

Minimum lease payments
Later than one
Mot later than year but not later Later than

one year than five years five years Total
€ € € €
30 November 2023
Lease payments 40477 168,487 2,923,337 3,132,307
Finance charges {45,587} {185,801) (2,304,801) (2,536,299)
Net present values (5,120) (17,414) 618,536 596,002

“uture minimum lease payvments at 30 November 2 were as bollows:
[ | pay tsar 30 N lzer 2022 Fall

Minimum lease payments
Later than one
Mot later than year but not later Later than

one year than five years five years Total
€ € €
30 Movember 2022
Lease payments 40,477 166,463 2,965,901 3,172,841
Finance charges {45.222) {184.546) (2,351,883) {2,581.451)
Met present values (4,745) {18,083) 614,218 591,390
27 Trade and other payables
The Group The Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ 13 € €
Current
Trade payables 1,228,680 290,906 107,217 10,524
Amounlts owed o parent company 144,760 149,006 144 667 144,669
Amounts owed to subsidiary - e 368,440 262,667
Amounts owed (o other related parties 41,430 45,082 41,430 10,456
Accruals 218,962 317,695 122 896 120,360
Cther payables 56,268 65,185 e 3
Financial liabilities 1,688,110 1,576,874 784,650 548,676
Other creditors 64,606 158,765 14,615 30287
Indiract taxes 129,873 98,741 21 B70 18,870
Deferred income 3,134 “ ? &
Trade and other payables 1,885,723 1,834,380 821,135 608,833

Amounts owed to parent company, subsidiary and ocher related parties are unsecured, interest frec and have
no fixed date of repayment.

28 Financial instrument risk
Risk management objectives and policies

The group and company are exposed ro vatious risks in relarion to financial instrumentt. The group and
company’s financial assets and Habilites by category are summarised in note 28.4. The main rypes of risks are
credit risk, liquidity risk and marker gisk,
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The group and company’s risk management is coordinated by the directors and focuses on actively seeuring
the group and company’s short to medium term cash flows by minimising the exposure to financial risk.

The group and company do not acovely engage in the mading of financaal assets for speculative purposes nor
do they write options. The most significant financial risk wo which the group and company are exposed tw are
described below.

28.1 Credit risk

Credir risk 1s the risk thar a counterparty Fails ro discharpe an obligation to the group or company. The group
and company’s exposute to credit risk is limited to the careying amount of financial assets recognised ac the
reporting darte, a5 summarised below:

The Group The Company

Notes 2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € €

Classes of financial assets carrying

amounts:

Loans and receivables 18 454,637 50,535 5,827,860 5,460,000
Trade and other receivablas 20 2,353,542 1,297,266 562.929 429 475
Cash and cash equivalents 21 2498, 382 316,387 101,860 97,225
3,106,561 1,664,198 6,402,649 5,986,700

The group and company continueusly monitor defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either
ir!cﬁ\-'idun”\' 0T |.T}" gl’.(_ll.'l[.‘,‘ ﬂnd i.l'li:[}l‘["lr!ln:ﬁ tll-ll.f\ ini‘l_‘ll’n'l.';lf‘ff]l"l inhr itS ::t[‘:dil‘ r‘ESli l':ﬂ[:l.tl'{ﬂﬁ.

The group and company asscss the eredir quality of customers taking into account the financial position, past
experience and other factors, The group and company’s exposute to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of cach customer, The group and company’s policies are w deal only with
creditworthy counterparties. The group has policies in place to ensure that it transacts with customers with
appropriate and acceptable credit history. The ongoing credit risk is managed through regular review of ageing
analysis, together with credit limits per customer. The management monitors the petformance of its trade
reccivables on a regular basis to idendfy credit losses, which are inherent in group and company’s debrors,
taking into account historical experience in collection of reccivables. Management does not expect any losses
trom non-performance by these customers,

Thiaele veceiralifes

Based on the amount of trade receivables ar year end, management concluded that che expected credir loss
which could result on these amounes would not be marerial to these financial seatements.

Other finaiial assets at amortised cort

Orher financial assets st amortised cost include related party receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

With respect to other balances with related parties (as disclosed in notes 18 and 2(1), the proup and company
assess the credit quality of these related partics by taking into account financial position, performance and
other factors. In measuring the expected credit losses in these balances, management deteemined the
imp:urment pru\fisiun independcntlg.' from chicd patty receivables and as ar 30 November 2022 and 2023, the
impairment is disclosed in nores 18 and 20 Managemenr mkes cognisance of the related parcy relationship
with these enrities and sertlement arrangements in place and does nor expect any losses from non-
performance ordefaulr.
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ratings, The cash and cash equivalents held with such bank at 30 November 2022 and 2023 are callable on
demand. The bank with whom cash and cash equivalent are held has a credit rating of BBB- by Standard and
Poor's Management considers the probability of default from such bank ta be close w zero and the amount
ealeulated using rhe 12-monrth expected credir loss model ro be very insignificant. Therefore, based on the

above, no lass allowance has been recopnised by the group and company.

28.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidiry risk is that the group and company might be unable to meet their obligations. The group and
company manage their liquidity needs through yearly cash flow forecasts by carefully monitoring expecred
cash inflows and outtlows oo a monthly basis. The group and company’s liquidity visk is nor deemed o be
significant in view of the macching of cash inflows and outflows ansing from expecred maturides of financial
instruments, a5 well as the group and company’s committed borrowing facilities that it can access to meet

liuidity needs.

As ar 30 November 2023, the nan-derivative financial liabilities have conreacrual marorines (including
interest payments where applicable) as summarised below:

The Group

30 November 2023

Debt securities in issue
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Lease liability

Total

The Company

30 November 2023

Debt securities in issue
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Total

Current Mon-current
Later than 5
Within 1 year 1to 5 years years
€ € €
17.662 70,648 4,811,877
136,681 {63,955 450,456
1,688,110 - -
40,477 168,487 2,923,337
1,882,930 903,090 8,185,370
Current Mon-current
Later than 5
Within 1 year 1to 5 years years
€ € €
17.662 70,648 4,811,577
46,069 278,403 450,456
Sy 784,850 - -
848,381 349,051 5,262,033
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This compates to the maturity of non-derivagve financal Labilities in the previous reporting periods as

follows:

The Group
30 November 2022

Dabt sacurilies in issua
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Lease liability

Total

The Company

30 November 2022

Debl securities in issue
Trade and other payables
Total

28.3 Market Risk

Foreign currency risk

Current

Within 1 year
€

17,662
60,243
1,576,874
40477
1,695,256

Current

Within 1 year
€

17,662
548,676
566,338

Non-current
Later than 5
1to 5 years years
€ €
70,648 4,793,915
564,059 .
166463 2,965,901
~ BO1470 7,759,816
Mon-current
Later than 5
1to 5 years years
€ €
70,648 4,793,915
70,648 4,793,915

The group and company transact business mainly in curo. Exposure to currency exchange rates arise from
the group’s purchase of foreign currency ro/from suppliers. However, foreign currency denominated
financial assets and liabilities at the end of the financial reporting date under review are deemed negligible.

Accordingly, the group’s exposure ro foreign cxchange risk is not significant and a sensitiviry analysis for
foreign exchange risk disclosing kow profir or loss and equity would have been affecred by changes in
forcign exchange rates that were reasonably possible ar the reporting date is deemed not necessary.

Interest rate risk

The group is exposed to changes in matket interest rates through its borrowings ar vartable interese rates.

The following table illusteates the sensidvity of the net result for the year o a ceasonably possible change in
interest rates of +/- 100 basis points, with effect from the beginning of the year. These changes are
considered to be reasonably possible based on observarion of current market condirins,

The calculations are based on the group and company’s financial inseruments held ar the reporting date of
the reporting period under review rhat are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held

constant.

The Group

30 November 2023

30 Novamber 2022

Profit (loss) for the year
€ €

100 bp -100 bp
7,135 (7.,135)

4,603 (4,693)
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28.4 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrving amounts of the group and company’s financial assers and liabilities as recognised at the reporring
date of the reporting perdod under review may also be caregorised as follows. See note 4.16 for explanations
about how the category of financial instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

The Group The Company
Notes 2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € £
Financial assets
Loans and receivakbles:
Non-current
Loans and receivables 18 429,456 50,535 5,802,679 5,460,000
Current
Loans and receivabias 18 25,181 - 25,181 -
Trade and other receivabiles 20 2,353,542 1,297 266 562,929 429475
Cash and cash equivalents 1 208,382 316,397 101,860 97,225
2,677,105 1,613 663 689,970 526,700
Financial liabilities
Financial iabilities measured at amortised
coskh:
Non-current
Debt securities in issue 24 4,882 225 4,864,563 4 BB2 225 4,864,563
Borrowings 25 778,128 564,059 288,967 -
Lease liability 26 586,002 591,390 - -
6,256,355 6,020,012 5,171,192 4,864,563
Current
Debt securities n issua 24 17,662 17,662 17,662 17,662
Bomrowings 25 80,379 60,243 25,181 -
Trade and other payables 27 1,688,110 1,576,874 784 650 548,676
1,796,151 1,654,779 827,493 566,338
29 Contingent liabilities
The Gmup The Cmpany
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ € € £

Guarantees given 1o secure the debl 1.249.359 469,302 850,000 -
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30 Related parties

The parent company of Bus}' Bee Finance PLC is Busy Bee Limired, which s Incorpor ted in Malr. The
individual financial statements of the company are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements of
Busy Bee Limited. The registered address of the company is Busy Bee Group, Zonc 4, Mdina Road, Mrichel,
Bitkirkara CBD 4010, Malta. No individual holds a controlling interest in the equity of the parent company,

Oursranding balances with related parties at period-end are disclosed in notes 18, 20, 23, 25 and 27 to these
fAnancial statements.

The company entered into cransactions with related parties as follows:

2023 2022
€ €
Transactions with other related parties
Interest income 269,880 270,152
Service faes incoma 486,000 486,000
Wages recharged 1o 418,801 310,886
‘The group entered into transactions with related parries as follows:
2023 2022
e €
Transactions with other related parties
Rental income 126,040 126,818
Wages recharged to 2,034,533 1.833.250

Revenue 6,134,553 5,847,637
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31 Segment reporting

The group’s operarions consist of the rent, royalties cafererias and gelareria, outside catering and other
income, The group’s business segments operate in the local market, An analysis by segment of the
group’s turnover and proficabilicy is set our

2023 Cafeteria & Outside
Rent Royalties gelateria catering Other Group
£ € € £ £ €
Revenue 146,942 351,103 4,254,271 1,879,979 123,388 6,755 683
Segment results 142,354 288,477 702,052 310,240 20,378 1,463 501

Cafeteria & Dutside
2022 Rent  Royalties gelateria catering Other Group
£ € € € € €
Revenue 147,213 327418 4,113,749 1,615,328 118,560 6,322 269
Segment resulls 140,322 205,378 138,920 54,549 4,025 633,102
2023 2022
€ €
Interest income 1,624 -
Other income 20 282 156 533
Movement in fair value of investment properly - 525,000
Depraciation and amortisation (558,229) (546,151)
Finance costs (317.224) (315.480)
Profit befare tax 609,944 453124
Tax expense (159,177) (5,795)
Profit for the year 450,767 447,329

32 Post reporting date events

No adjusting or other significant non-adjusting évenrs have oceurred between the reporting dare and the dare
of authorisation.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the shateholders of Busy Bee Finance PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Cpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Busy Bee Finance PLC ("the company™) and of the group of
which it is the parent, sct out on pages 13 to 49, which cﬂmpris[: the statements of Anancial Fositi:nn as ar
30 November 2023, and the smtements of profit or loss, statemients of changes in equity and statements of
cash flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the Bnancial statements, including a sumniary of significant
accounting policies and orher explanatory information,

In out opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
company and the group as at 30 November 2023, and of their financial performance and cash tlows for the
vear then ended in accordance with [ntermadonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopred by che
Furopean Union (EU), and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, Cap. 386 (the “Act”).

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the audit committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audic in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilitics
under those standards are further described in the Audirar’s Responsibilities for the Audir of the Financial
Statcments scetion of our report. We are independent of the company and the group in accordance with the
International Echics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code) together with the ethical requirements of the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrane
Holders) Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act, Cap. 281 that are relevant to our audic
of the financial starements in Malra. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in accordance with these
requirements. We believe thar the audit evidence we have nbiained is sufficient and appropriate w provide «
basis for our opinion. In conducting our audit we have remained independent of the company and the group
and have not provided any of the non-audit services prohibited by article 18A of the Accounrancy Protession
Act, Cap, 281, The non-audit services that we have provided to the company and the group duting the year
ended 3t Novemnber 2023 are disclased in note 9 1o the financial sratements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matrers are those marters rhar, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audic
of the financial statements of the current period and include the mosr sigmificant assessed risks of material
misstatcment (whether or not duc to fraud) that we identified, "These matters were addressed in the contexe of
our audit of the financial statements as a wholg, and in forming our opinion thercon, and we do not provide &
separate opimion on these marrers,



51

Q GrantThornton

Revenue from sale of products in the consolidated financial statements
Key audit marter

The group recognises revenue from sale of products on goods supplied o related patties. We considered
revenue from sale of products as a key audic matter since it is based on a significant volume of transactions
and directly impacts the group’s profitability. The group’s disclosures on its revenue recognition policy is
presented in note 4.5 to the financial statements,

How the key audit matter was addressed in our andit

Our audit procedures o address the risk of material misstatement relating to revenue from sale of products
included among others, testing the design and operating cffectivencss of the related parties incernal controls
over recognition of revenues, performing substantve procedures over revenues of related paroes and
recalculation of revenue from sale of products perraining to the group.

Impairment testing on intangible assets in the consolidated financial statements
Key andit matter

Intangible assers comprising the “Busy Bee'” brand with a carrying amount of € 1.5 million at 30 November
2023 are included on the group’s Statement of Financial Position as at that dare.

Management is requited to perform an assessment at least annually to establish whether intangible assets that
have an indefinite useful life should continue to be recognised, er if any impairment is required. The
impairment assessment was based on the calculadons which were prepared o determine the consideradon thar
was ser at the time the group acquired the brand.

We focussed on this area because of the significance of the amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful
life owned by the group and which are recognised at balunce sheer dare. Moreover, the directors’ assessment
process is complex and judgmental and is bascd on assumptions which are affected by expected future market
or cconomic conditions.

How the key audit matter was addressed in our andir

We evaluared the suitability and appropriateness of the impairment merhodology applied by management and
engaped our internal valuatdon specialist resources 1o assess the reliability of the forecasts used and ro challenge
the methodology used and the undetlying assumptons. We concluded that the paramerers utlised were
reasonable,

We communicated with management and those charged with governance and nored thar they were able
prowvide satisfactory responses to our questions. We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures set our in
note 12 to the financial statements relating ro intangible assets, Those disclosures explain that the direcrors
have assessed the carrying amount of intangible assets with an indefinite useful life as ar 30 November 2023
ane they concluded that the asset is recoverable and thar there i3 no impairment in the value of the intangible
assets with an ndchnire uscful life,

Impairment testing on investment property in the consoclidated financial statements

The valuation of the group’s investment property is inherently subjective due to a number of factors such as
the individual nature of each property, its location and the expected future returns. Management has earried
out asscssments for the valuations of the group’s propertics which were last valued by independent architects
in November 2022, As a resulcof their assessment the direcrors concluded that the valuations of the properties
at 30 November 2022 remained unchanged and therefore no changes to the valuatons were reflected durning
the current year.

We focussed on this area becanse of the significance of the amount of invesrmenr properties owned by the
group and which are recognised at balance sheet date.
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the propernies included reviewing the internal assessments made
by the directors and ensuring thar there were no significant changes to the independent architects valuations
which were concluded in November 2022, We also discussed the valuations with management, the Audic
Committee and the directors and found that they were able to pravide explanations to eur questions,

We have also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures relating to investment properties set out in note 13
these financial statements. Those disclosures explain thart the dircctors have assessed the carcying amount of
the investment properties as at 30 November 2023 and they concluded that the carrying amount is recoverable
and that there is no impairment in the value of the properties.

Assessment of carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries and other leans due from subsidiaries
in the company financial statements

Key audit matter

At 30 November 2023 management cartied out an asscssment to establish whether the carrying amount of
investments in subsidiaries and loans due from subsidiaries and fellow subsidiary amounong to € 102,400 and
€ 5.8 million shown in notes 16 and 18 respectively of the financial statements of the company at thar date
should contnue to be recopnised, or if any impairment is required

Ve focussed on this area because of the signiﬁcancu of the investments in subsidiarics and loans duc from
subsidiaries.

How the key audit matier was addressed in onr awdit

We evaluated the suitability and appropriateness of the impairment methodology applied by management and
concluded that the parameters utilised were reasonable.

We communicated with management and those charged with governance and noted that they were able ©
pravide satistactory responses to our questions. We also assessed the financial position of the subsidiaries and
determined thar the divectors’ conclusion that the carrving amount of invesmments in subsidiaries and loans
due from subsidiaties are recoverable is reasonable.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other informartion. The other information comprises (1) the Dircctors’
report and (i) the Corporate Governance — Statement of Compliance which we obtained prior o the daw of
this audiror’s report, but does nat include the financial starements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informanon, including the Directars® report.
In connection with our audit of the financial seatements, our responsibility is to read the orher information
wentified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent with the

financial statements or our knowledge obmined in the audit, or otherwise appears to be matcoally misstated.

With respect to the Direcrors’ report, wealso considered whether rhe Directors' report includes the disclosures
requited by Article 177 of the Act.
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e [heinformation given in the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements arc
prepared 1s consistent with the financial starements, and
e the Dircctors’ report has been prepared 1n accordance with the Act,

In atldidan, in light of the knowledyge and understanding of the company and the group and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we are required m report if we have idenrified material missmtements in
the Directors’ report and other information that we obtained prior to the dare of this auditor’s reporr. We have
nothing to teport in rhis regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with LIRS as adopted by the EU and arc properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of
the Acrt, and for such internal conmol as the directors derermine is necessary o enable the preparadion of
financial statements thac are free from matedal misscatement, whether due o fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s and the group's
ahility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
gaing concern hasis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. The directars are responsible for oversecing the
company's and the proup’s financial reportng process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial seatements as a whole are free
from muaterial misstatement, whether due to Fraud or error, and to 1ssue an anditor’s repore that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is 4 high level of assurance, bur is nora guarantee char an audir conducred in
accordance with 18As will always detect 2 marerial misseatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered marerial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemenes,

In terms of article 179A (4) of the Act, the scope of our audit does not include assurance on the future viability
if the audited endty or on the efficiency or effectivencess with which the divectors have conducred or will
conducr the affaits of the entity,

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, we exercise professional iur]gf_'ment and] maintain prnfessie.:ml]
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess che risks of material misstatement of the finaneial statements, whecher due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 1s
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nsk of not detecring a material
misstatement tesulting from fraud is higher than for one resuliing from error, as fraud may invalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentatons, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audir in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in rhe circumsrances, bur not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffecriveness
of the company’s and group’s internal control.

= Ewvalugre the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonubleness of accounnng estimares
and related disclosures made by management.
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- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainey exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the company’s and group's ability to continue as a going concern. 1f we
conclude thar a marerial uncertunty exists, we are reguired o draw artenton in our auditor’s reporr o the
related disclosures in the financial starements or, if such disclosures are inadeguare, to modify our opinion,
Our conelusions are based on the audit evidence obrined up to the date of our guditor's report. However
furure evenrs or eondirinns may cause the company or the group 0 cease o continue as 4 going concern,

= Bvaluare the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including rhe
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying rransactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair preseatation,

= Obuin sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the financial informavon of the entties or business
activities within the group to express and opinion on the consolidared financial seatements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audic. We remain salely
responsible for our audit apinion.

We communicaee with thosc charged with governance regarding, among other mateers, the planned scope and
nming of the audic and sigmificant audic findings, including any significant deficicnoes in internal conrrol thar
we idendfy during our audir,

We also provide those charged with governance with a stacement that we have complied with the relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
marters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relared safeguards.

From the matrers communicared with those charged with governance, we derermine those mareers thar were
of most significance in the audic of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audic matters, We deseribe these martters in our auditor’s report unless law or reguladion precludes public
disclosure abour the matter or when, in extremely rare cireumstances, we determine that 2 matter should not
be communicated in our reporr because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
tov outweigh the public interest benefic of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

prﬂﬂf on Carpora!e Sovernance statement

The Prospects MTF Rules (the ‘Rules) issued by the Malm Stock Exchange require the directors o prepare
and include in their Annual Report a € OrpOrate governance statement providing an explanarion of the extent
tex which they have adopted the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance and the effective measures
that they have taken to ensure e compliance throughout the accounting period with those Principles.

The Rules also require us, as the auditor of the company, to include a report on the Statement of Compliance
prepared by the direcrors.

We read the Corporare Governance - Stacement of Compliance and consides che implications for our report
if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements
included in the Annual Report. Our respensibilities do net extend to considering whether this staternent is
consistent with any other information included in the Annual Report.

We are not required to, and we do not, consider whether the Board’s statements on internal conrrol included
in the Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance caver all risks and eantrols, or form an epinion on
the effectiveness of the compamy’™s cotporate governance procedures ot its risk and control procedures.

[n our opinion, the Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance set out on pages 7 to 12 has been
properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Rules.
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Other matters on which we are required to report by exception
e We also have responsibilities under the Companies Act, Cap 386 to report to you if, in our opinion:
- adeguare accounting records have not been kepr, or thar recurns adeguare for our audic have nor been
received from branches not visited by us
- the Ainancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and rerurns
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audic
- cetrain disclosures of dircctors” remuneration specified by law are not made in the financial statements,
giving the required particulars in our report.
W have nothing to report to you in respect of these ccsponsibilitics.

Aunelitor tenure

We were appointed as auditors of the company on 12 November 2020 and therefore represents an engagement
of four years

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mark Bugeja.

Mark Bugejd (Pattner) for and on behalf of

GRANT THORNTON
Certified Public Accountants

Fort Business Centre

Trig L-lntornjatur, Zone 1
Cenrtral Business District
Birkickara CBD 1050
Malra

28 March 2024
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